
  

Cultural Services Board Meeting Agenda Page 1 

CULTURAL SERVICES, HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION, & TREE ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 
 

MONDAY               COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
April 1, 2024 - 5:30 PM             4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL                                         
 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or more 
members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 
 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 
  
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 A. February 5, 2024 
 
5. REPORT OF STAFF: 
 A. Cultural Services update – Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
 B. Public Works update – Fred Griffith, Public Works General Manager 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A.       HIST-4-2024: Designation of Historic Tree at Ponce Preserve 
 

B. Potential improvements for FY 24/25 budget consideration:  
 
1.  Additional Pavilion at Kay & Ayres Davies Park 
2.  Native plant identification markers  
3.  Adding youth basketball hoops at Timothy Pollard Memorial Park 
4. Kayak launch at Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp 

 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 
 
9. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION. 
  
10. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
Next Meeting:  Monday, May 6, 2024 
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Cultural Services Board with respect to any matter considered 
at a meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings and to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made at their own expense. Persons who require accommodation to attend this hearing should contact the Ponce Inlet 
Town Hall at 236-2150 at least one week prior to the meeting date to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
 
Topic: Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Summary:  
Staff has prepared the attached set of meeting minutes for the Board’s 
review and approval. 
 
Suggested Motion/Action: 
 

To APPROVE the February 5, 2024 meeting minutes: 
 

 As Presented - or -   As Amended 
 
Requested by: 
 

Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 
 
Reviewed & Authorized by: 
 

Mrs. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: April 1, 2024 

Agenda Item:   4 



 

 

Cultural Services Board    2/05/2024             Page 1 of 5 

Meeting Minutes 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

CULTURAL SERVICES, HISTORIC PRESERVATION, 2 

AND TREE ADVISORY BOARD 3 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 4 

February 5, 2024 5 

  6 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, Vice-Chair 7 

Finch called the meeting to Order at 5:30 PM in the Council Chambers, located at 4300 S. Atlantic 8 

Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida and led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.   9 

 10 

2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: A quorum was established with five 11 

members and one alternate present. 12 

 13 

 Board members present: 14 

  Ms. LaBarre, Seat 1 15 

  Ms. Keese, Seat 2 16 

  Mr. Shaffer, Seat 3 17 

  Ms. Finch, Seat 4; Vice-Chair 18 

  Ms. Bell, Seat 5, Chair (Absent) 19 

  Ms. Kessler, Alternate Seat 1  20 

  Mr. Patton, Alternate Seat 2 21 

  22 

 Staff members present: 23 

Mrs. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 24 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager   25 

  Mr. Griffith, Public Works Director 26 

  Mr. Lear, Planning and Development Director  27 

  Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 28 

  Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 29 

 30 

A. Oaths of Office – Ms. Stewart administered the Oaths of Office to Ms. LaBarre, Mr. Shaffer, 31 

Ms. Kessler, and Mr. Patton. (administered after the election of Chair and Vice-Chair) 32 

 33 

B. Election of Chair - Ms. Finch nominated Ms. Bell to continue to serve as Chair; seconded 34 

by Mr. Shaffer. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 35 

 36 

C. Election of Vice-Chair - Ms. Kessler nominated Ms. Finch to continue to serve as Vice-37 

Chair; seconded by Mr. Shaffer. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 38 

 39 

3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: Vice-Chair Finch asked if there were changes; there were none.  40 

 41 

Mr. Shaffer moved to approve the agenda as presented; seconded by Ms. Kessler. The motion PASSED 42 

by consensus, 5-0. 43 

 44 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 45 



 

Cultural Services Board Minutes           02/05/2024             Page 2 of 5 

 A. December 4, 2023 – Vice-Chair Finch asked if there were any changes; Ms. LaBarre 46 

referred to line 157 of the minutes and requested “and she complimented the Marine Science Center 47 

staff” be added to her comment. 48 

 49 

Ms. LaBarre moved to approve the December 4, 2023 meeting minutes as amended; seconded by Mr. 50 

Shaffer. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 51 

 52 

5. REPORT OF STAFF: 53 

 54 

A. Cultural Services Update – Mrs. Alex provided an overview of programs and special 55 

events held in 2023; there were 53 events, with 1600 attendees and over 60 volunteers. She noted a list 56 

of upcoming Spring 2024 events has been provided at Board member stations. A volunteer event with 57 

Young Bear Environmental is being organized to remove the invasive air potato vines; she will provide 58 

that date to the Board and volunteers once determined. 59 

 60 

B. Public Works Update - Mr. Griffith provided an update on Public Works activities. He 61 

referred to the vegetation removal around Town Hall and noted the barren areas will be seeded. The 62 

museum chimney has been sealed. Security cameras for the athletic courts are still being researched. 63 

Ms. Keese asked if the cameras would be live once installed. Ms. Alex explained that will be decided 64 

once we know what type of cameras will be installed. Ms. Keese asked for an update on the new court 65 

reservation system. Ms. Alex explained that is still in process.  66 

 67 

6. OLD BUSINESS: None. 68 

 69 

7. NEW BUSINESS:  70 

 71 

A. FDP 39-2023, Sailfish Marina 72 

Property Address:  4912 Sailfish Drive 73 

Review of Landscape Plan and Tree Preservation Plan – Ms. Rippey provided a 74 

PowerPoint presentation on the landscape plan and tree protection plan for Sailfish Marina. The 75 

proposed project includes a 34-slip marina, a 17-space parking lot, 216 square foot (SF) bathroom 76 

building, two stormwater retention areas, and a 550 linear foot wooden walkway. She noted Mr. Mark 77 

Karet, Zev Cohen & Associates, is present representing Blue Water Realty Advisors, property owners. 78 

She reviewed the history of the project and showed photos of the project area. She reviewed the tree 79 

preservation plan and noted that the applicant is proposing to preserve 116 trees and remove 139 trees; 80 

of those 139 trees, 32 are 18” DBH or greater which requires Board approval to remove. The applicant 81 

proposes to meet mitigation through a combination of the 116 existing trees being preserved and 82 

planting 46 additional trees; a total of 162 trees. The Board may approve the 1:1 replacement or request 83 

additional trees.   84 

 85 

Ms. Rippey reviewed the landscape plan. She explained the designated parking spaces 86 

will be screened from the access streets, adjacent properties, and the riverfront. Developments along 87 

Sailfish Drive are required to observe a 15-foot buffer plus an additional 20-foot buffer to maintain the 88 

existing tree canopy and other non-invasive natural vegetation. Forty-six shade trees and 367 shrubs 89 

are being proposed in addition to the preserved 116 shade trees and vegetation. She explained the 90 

application review criterion, vegetation protection and removal standards and noted that all have been 91 

met. Staff recommends the Board forward the proposed Sailfish Marina landscape and tree protection 92 

plan to the Planning Board and Town Council with a recommendation of approval as presented; and 93 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EWiblCf1caRAkpxhJY0GUUQBTnMXVtpZPUnIhmdyxZvvJg?e=bBK0nn


 

Cultural Services Board Minutes           02/05/2024             Page 3 of 5 

recommend approval of the tree removal request of 32 specimen trees 18” DBH or greater subject to 94 

the provided conditions. Ms. Kessler referred to the surrounding properties and noted that they are 95 

residential; she asked if these properties are to be developed. Ms. Rippey explained those properties 96 

are owned by the same entity that owns the property for the proposed Sailfish Marina and no plans have 97 

come forth to develop those properties at this time. Vice-Chair Finch asked if the marina would be open 98 

to the public. Ms. Rippey explained the wooden walkway will be open to the public; the restrooms will 99 

be for boat owners. It was asked if a boat ramp or restaurant would be built there. Ms. Rippey explained 100 

there are no plans for either and noted there are restrictions to the site due to the shell mound. Ms. 101 

LaBarre commented that the documents show the shell mound will be protected during construction 102 

and asked what happens after construction is completed. Ms. Rippey noted she would have to 103 

investigate that and get back to her. 104 

 105 

Mr. Shaffer moved to recommend approval of the Sailfish Marina Landscape Plan and 106 

Tree Preservation Plan. 107 

 108 

Discussion ensued regarding protection of the shell mound and if signage could be 109 

installed. Mr. Mark Karet, Zev Cohen & Associates, explained he represents the property owners, Blue 110 

Water Realty Advisors; he stated there are no plans for this project to impact the shell mound. Ms. 111 

LaBarre asked if the shell mound would be accessible to the public and boat owners. Mr. Karet 112 

explained it will be adjacent to the project; the marina will be an expansion to the existing sea level 113 

boat works. Ms. LaBarre asked for confirmation that there is no planned protection for the shell midden 114 

after construction. Mr. Karet stated there will be protection to the shell midden from direct impact of 115 

the construction activity. It is protected from digging or excavating. Discussion continued regarding 116 

protecting the shell mound. The walkway will be from the parking lot to marina; pedestrians will not 117 

be encouraged to walk over the shell mound. Mr. Karet agreed to consult with the property owner 118 

regarding installing signs to keep pedestrians on the walkway and off the shell mound. Ms. Mary Lou 119 

Fillingame, 33 Ocean Way Drive, stated her concern is traffic on her street once the marina opens; she 120 

asked if property owners had been notified. Vice-Chair Finch noted that there should be no additional 121 

traffic as there will not be a boat ramp; the marina will be for boats already in the water. Mr. Karet 122 

clarified there are no plans for a boat ramp or access for public boating. He explained a traffic analysis 123 

report was prepared and reviewed by town staff. Mr. Alex Griswold, Blue Water Realty, stated he has 124 

no problem with including a sign that the shell mound is a protected area.  125 

 126 

Mr. Shaffer amended his motion of approval of the Sailfish Marina Landscape Plan and Tree 127 

Preservation Plan to add the condition of signage stating the shell mound is a protected area; seconded 128 

by Ms. LaBarre; The motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Mr. Shaffer – yes; Ms. LaBarre – yes; 129 
Ms. Keese – yes; Vice-Chair Finch - yes; Ms. Kessler - yes. 130 
 131 

B. 2024 Meeting Dates – Vice-Chair Finch asked if members wanted to keep the scheduled 132 

July 1, 2024 meeting date or reschedule it to July 8, 2024.  133 

 134 

The Board agreed by consensus to keep the July 1, 2024 meeting date and moved the September 135 

2, 2024 meeting to September 9, 2024. 136 

 137 

C. Annual Board Member Training – Vice-Chair Finch noted there are no new board 138 

members, and the training materials were included in the agenda packet. Members were informed 139 

of training opportunities on February 27th and March 2nd. 140 

 141 



 

Cultural Services Board Minutes           02/05/2024             Page 4 of 5 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: There was no public participation.  142 

 143 

9. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION:  144 

 145 

A. FY 24/25 Budgetary Items – Ms. Alex announced this is an open discussion for budgetary 146 

items for FY 2024/25 for any parks and recreation items, or other items relevant to this Board that 147 

members would like staff to research. Ms. Mary Lou Fillingame, 33 Ocean Way Drive, stated she 148 

recently noticed small children playing basketball and thought a basketball hoop more to their size 149 

would be a good idea. Vice-Chair Finch stated she would like to include security cameras in the budget. 150 

Ms. Alex noted cameras are already in the budget. Ms. Kessler requested including a yearly shredding 151 

program to be held at the Community Center as was done two years ago; she asked how much it cost. 152 

Ms. Alex explained she did not know as Public Works managed that event previously; however, she 153 

will research it and bring the information back at the next meeting. Vice-Chair Finch stated Ms. Barbara 154 

Davis had suggested having Young Bear Environmental for up-keep of invasive plants in Ponce 155 

Preserve. Mr. Disher referred to the shredding program and stated the paper shredding done in the past 156 

cost approximately $8,000; it is not in this year’s budget, but it can be proposed for next fiscal year’s 157 

budget. Invasive species plant removal throughout town was budgeted for this year and will continue 158 

to do; the cost for that is approximately $10,000. Mr. Disher explained that the issue with security 159 

cameras is data storage; there is a subscription to store the data that is very expensive. Staff is 160 

researching options and ways to do this locally while adhering to federal standards; there cannot be wi-161 

fi because it can be hacked. The cameras must be hard-wired or cabled which limits where they can be 162 

installed. The security cameras are still a work in progress.  163 

 164 

Ms. Alex announced she received an email suggestion from a citizen to have a community 165 

garden. Ms. Keese stated there used to be one by the lighthouse. Vice-Chair Finch commented she did 166 

know how many people would be interested. Ms. Kessler asked if community composting would be 167 

worth researching. Mr. Griffith stated there is limited space for that. Ms. LaBarre asked what happened 168 

to last year’s suggestion to art wrap utility boxes. Ms. Alex explained it was cut from this year’s budget, 169 

but it will be proposed for next year’s budget. Vice-Chair Finch stated she would prefer the art wrapped 170 

utility boxes rather than a community compost or garden. Ms. LaBarre commented that she walked 171 

along the esplanade in Daytona Beach where their utility boxes are wrapped and noted how lovely they 172 

are. Ms. Kessler asked that the Board support the farmers market by sending out emails and reminders; 173 

they are not having enough citizens attend. Ms. Alex stated the town’s new ordinance on co-sponsorship 174 

allowed for advertising the first year; however, it is not eligible for town advertising now under the new 175 

ordinance; she will email Ms. Kessler the new ordinance. Ms. Alex referred to the work Ms. Barbara 176 

Davis (and her volunteers) has extended for native plants and asked if the Board was interested in staff 177 

researching plant identification posts. Ms. Davis created some ID posts throughout the park, but they 178 

are not permanent. Ms. LaBarre noted there is an app available that will do that. Ms. Kessler stated the 179 

Marine Science Center has formed a native plant group and they are working on similar signage; they 180 

are also working with Ms. Davis. This may be able to be coordinated in the future. Mr. Shaffer asked if 181 

there is a high demand for use of the pavilion and if it would be beneficial to have an additional one. 182 

Ms. Alex replied it is steady throughout the year. Members discussed items for staff to research to 183 

include in next year’s budget. Ms. Alex reviewed the requests discussed for the budget in addition to the 184 

community paper shredding and native plant maintenance that is already being considered: consensus 185 

for a small basketball court; no to the community garden in favor of the utility box art wraps; native 186 

plant ID signage; and if there is a need for an additional pavilion.  187 

 188 



 

Cultural Services Board Minutes           02/05/2024             Page 5 of 5 

Ms. Keese stated there is confusion regarding maintenance at the recreational area; if there is a 189 

light out, etc. Because Ms. Alex’s office is also there by the Fire Department, people will walk over to 190 

tell her; however, if Ms. Alex is out of the office, people are being told to contact Public Works which 191 

is not customer friendly; staff should take a note and let Public Works know the issue. Ms. Alex replied 192 

she will bring this to the attention of the Fire Department; every staff member is here to assist the public. 193 

Mr. Disher reiterated that he would also follow up on this suggestion.  194 

 195 

10. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m.  196 

 197 

Prepared and submitted by: 198 

 199 

 200 

_________________________________ 201 

Debbie Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 202 

 203 

Attachment(s):   None. 204 



 
 

 

 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
 
Topic: HIST-4-2024: Designation of Historic Tree at Ponce Preserve 

   
Summary:  

 

Applicants are requesting designation of a 41” DBH Southern Live Oak 
tree located on Town property as a historic and landmark tree. 
 
Suggested Motion/Action: 
 

Recommendation of approval of application for designation of historic 
tree at Ponce Preserve. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: April 1, 2024 

Agenda Item:   7-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation & Tree Advisory Board 

From: Patty  Rippey, Principal Planner

Date: March 18, 2024 

Subject: Historic Tree Designation 

REQUEST: To designate a 41” tree in Ponce Preserve as a Historic and Landmark 
tree 

LOCATION: 4401 S. Peninsula Drive - Ponce Preserve Park 

APPLICANT: Barbara Davis and Catherine O’Brien 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval, based on the findings in this report 

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2024

1 
INTRODUCTION2 
The applicants are requesting designation of a 41” DBH Southern Live Oak located on Town-3 
owned property as a historic and landmark tree. 4 

5 
AUTHORITY AND PROCESS6 
Section 4.10.5.D of the Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) describes the criteria for 7 
designating landmark and historic trees (Attachment 1). Upon receipt of a complete application 8 
and review by Staff, it is the Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board’s 9 
role as an advisory body to provide a recommendation on whether the tree should be designated. 10 
The Board is to review the proposed nomination at a public hearing and base its decision on 11 
specific criteria, which are discussed further below. After the Board has provided its 12 
recommendation to the Town Council, the Council may then choose to pass a resolution that 13 
officially designates the tree and add it to the Local Historic Register. 14 

15 
PROPERTY OVERVIEW 16 
The tree is in Ponce Preserve, 4401 S. Peninsula Drive, Ponce Inlet (Attachment 2 ). This property 17 
is owned by the Town of Ponce Inlet, offering walking trails from the Atlantic Ocean to the Halifax 18 
River, wetlands, kayak and canoe launches, a children’s playground, and the Historic Green 19 
Mound. 20 

21 
22 

7-A



Historic and Landmark Tree  Page 2 
Ponce Preserve 
 

 
REVIEW OF APPLICATION 23 
The tree being nominated for designation as a historic tree is a Southern Live Oak (Quercus 24 
virginiana) and is located on the northwest edge of the Green Mound in Ponce Preserve. The tree 25 
is in good health and the species is indigenous to the region and this ecological setting. In addition, 26 
the tree has unique growth features that makes this unique among live oaks in the area. The tree 27 
measures 41” DBH and the canopy height is estimated to be 65 feet. The canopy area is estimated 28 
at approximately 2,600 square feet. 29 

 30 
According to the information in the application package (see Attachments 3), the criteria for 31 
designating a tree as historic has been met for this tree.  Photographs of the tree are contained in 32 
Attachment 4. 33 
 34 
RELATIONSHIP TO DEVELOPMENT 35 
In addition to the criteria above, nominations for local historic landmarks are also reviewed 36 
according to their relationship between the designation and existing and future plans for the 37 
development of the town. The nominated tree is located in a Town owned park, which receives 38 
thousands of tourists per year. The property to the north and south of Ponce Preserve are residential 39 
zones. To the east is the Atlantic Ocean and to the west is the Halifax River. The designation of 40 
the tree would complement the existing historic sites, trees and walking trails in the surrounding 41 
area.  42 
 43 
 44 
RECOMMENDATION 45 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed designation. In its role as a recommending body, the 
Cultural Services Board is now asked to review the criteria in making its recommendation for 
designation to the Town Council.  

 
                            March 18, 2024 
Patty Rippey, AICP, Principal Planner     Date 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. LUDC Section 4.10.5. 
2. Location map 
3. Narrative provided Certified Arborist 
4. 

 
 
 

dlear
Typewritten Text
Photographs of tree



 
ATTACHMENT 1 

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION  
 
 

LUDC SECTION 4.10.5.D.2. 
 

Criteria for designation. In order to be eligible for historic or landmark designation, the following criteria shall be 
met:  

a. The tree must be indigenous to the region;  

b. The tree must be in apparent good health;  

c. The tree must have a DBH of at least 25 inches; and  

d. The tree must possess significance in one or more of the following ways:  

(1) The tree has a documented association with a historical figure, property, or significant historical 
event.  

(2) The tree is associated with a historic landmark, site, or event.  

(3) The tree was planted as a commemoration, memorial or tribute.  

(4) The tree is distinctive due to a functional or aesthetic relationship with a natural resource, such as 
trees located along stream banks or along dune or ridge lines.  

(5) The tree has exceptional or unique architecture.  

{6) The tree is identified by the town as having significant arboricultural or horticultural value to the 
citizens of the town.  

(7) The tree is identified as playing a significant role in the landscape or architecture of a specific 
location.  

 
 

  



 
ATTACHMENT 2 

LOCATION MAP  
 

 

Property Address/Location:    4401 S. Peninsula  

 

LOCATION MAP 
 

T O W N  O F  P O N C E  I N L E T 

 

 

 



 

 
 

dlear
Typewritten Text
NARRATIVE FROM CERTIFIED ARBORIST

dlear
Typewritten Text


dlear
Typewritten Text
   

dlear
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3



 

 
 
 

 



 
ATTACHMENT 4 

PHOTOGRAPHS OF TREE  
PONCE PRESERVE PARK 

 
 

 
 

 
  



 

 
 



 
 

 
 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
 
Topic: Potential improvements for FY 24/25 consideration: 
 

1. Additional Pavilion at Kay & Ayres Davies Park 
2. Native plant identification markers 
3. Adding youth basketball hoops at Timothy Pollard 

Memorial Park 
4. Kayak launch at Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp 

 
Summary:  

 

Staff is requesting the Board’s input for potential improvements for FY 
24/25 consideration. 

 
Suggested Motion/Action: 
 

At Board’s discretion. 

 
Requested by: 
 

Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: April 1, 2024 

Agenda Item:   7-B 



Page 1 of 5 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: March 22, 2024 
Subject: Potential improvements for FY 24/25 consideration: Item 1: Additional Pavilion at 

Kay & Ayres Davies Park 

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2024 

At the February 5, 2024, Cultural Services Board meeting, the Board requested staff research 
potential improvements to the Town’s parks in preparation for the next fiscal year’s budget. Staff 
is seeking direction and recommendation from the Board on the following budget item for 
consideration in the fiscal year 24/25.  

Item 1- An additional pavilion at Kay & Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park 
The Board’s request for this item was to assess the use of the existing park pavilion and if those 
findings warrant installation of an additional pavilion similar in size to accommodate more 
pavilion reservations.  

In 2023, the Davies Park pavilion received a total of 19 reservations, 10 of which were reserved 
by the Town for its own events. This pavilion is not in high demand, averaging 1.5 reservations 
per month. 

The current Davies Park pavilion is 16’x30’ and is constructed of treated wood (Exhibit 1). 
Preliminary estimates of a park pavilion similar in size is $21,500 (Exhibit 2). This is a base price 
with standard finishing options and does not include mobilization of the site, excavation and 
clearing, concrete, or installation. To provide the Board with reference, the final cost of the shade 
structures installed at Pollard Park in 2023 was 2.5 times the estimated cost of the materials alone. 
If these ratios are still the same today, an estimated total for an additional pavilion at Davies Park 
would be $54,000. 

On this item, staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether to budget for an additional 
pavilion at Davies Park for fiscal year 24/25, and if so, for the Board to make a recommendation 
to Town Council. 

7B-1



Page 2 of 5 

March 22, 2024 
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager    Date

Exhibits: 
1. Current pavilion at Davies Park 
2. RCP Shelters quote page 1- Wood Gable Shelter 16’x28’  
3. RCP Shelters quote page 2- Wood Gable Shelter 16’x28’ 

Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager



Page 3 of 5 

 
Exhibit 1:  

Current pavilion at Davies Park 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 
Exhibit 2:  

RCP Shelters quote page 1- Wood Gable Shelter 16’x28’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 
Exhibit 3:  

RCP Shelters quote page 2- Wood Gable Shelter 16’x28’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 1 of 3 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: March 22, 2024 
Subject: Potential improvements for FY 24/25 consideration: Item 2: Native Plant 

Identification Markers  

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2024 

At the February 5, 2024, Cultural Services Board meeting, the Board requested staff research 
potential improvements to the Town’s parks in preparation for the next fiscal year’s budget. Staff 
is seeking direction and recommendation from the Board on the following budget item for 
consideration in the fiscal year 24/25.  

Item 2- Native plant identification markers within town parks 
Since September 2023, a town volunteer group has dedicated hundreds of hours protecting and 
preserving native plants within town parks. Barbara Davis, the lead volunteer of this group, created 
temporary identification markers to include both the common and scientific name of the plant, as 
well as a QR code linking to additional details of the plant, such as characteristics and planting 
care. 

The Cultural Services Department is proposing permanent identification markers for native plants 
throughout town parks for potential improvements for the fiscal year 24/25. Preliminary estimates 
for 5”x5” aluminum native plant identification markers are $60 per marker, including the signpost 
and assembly parts. Understanding that prices may increase within the time of next year’s 
purchase, staff proposes to budget for identification markers not to exceed $3,000. The primary 
locations of these native plant identification markers would be in Ponce Preserve and Timucuan 
Oaks to reflect the number of native plants found in these parks and would be modeled after the 
design of Mrs. Davis’s markers. 

On this item, staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether to budget for an additional 
pavilion at Davies Park for fiscal year 24/25, and if so, for the Board to make a recommendation 
to Town Council. 

7B-2



Page 2 of 3 

March 22, 2024 
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager    Date

Exhibits: 
1. Stock photo of plant identification marker with QR code 

Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager



Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit 1: 
Stock photo of plant identification marker with QR code 

 



Page 1 of 5 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: March 22, 2024 
Subject: Potential improvements for FY 24/25 consideration: Item 3: Adding youth 

basketball hoops at Timothy Pollard Memorial Park 

MEETING DATE:  March 4, 2024 

At the February 5, 2024, Cultural Services Board meeting, the Board requested staff research 
potential improvements to the Town’s parks in preparation for the next fiscal year’s budget. Staff 
is seeking direction and recommendation from the Board on the following budget item for 
consideration in the fiscal year 24/25.  

Item 3- Adding youth basketball hoops at Timothy Pollard Memorial Park 
Through observing small children playing on the basketball court, a resident suggested a potential 
improvement project of installing basketball hoops at a shorter height for the youth population.  

Currently, there are two basketball hoops that stand at the standard 10-foot height on the North 
and South ends of the court. This court is also 26 feet shorter in length than regulation size, which 
should be accounted for when adding amenities. 

Most basketball hoops that are sold and installed for courts are either the standard 10-foot height 
hoop, or adjustable hoops that can be adjusted between five to 10 feet. Options for installation, 
should the Board proceed, could include replacing the two current hoops with adjustable hoops, 
replacing one of the current hoops with an adjustable hoop, or keeping the two current hoops and 
installing an adjustable hoop on the East or West side of the basketball court. 

Adjustable hoops are manufactured with tempered glass backboards with load-bearing rims to 
withstand the force and impact of dunking, that being the main usage for adjustable basketball 
hoops.  

Multiple vendors stated that adjustable basketball hoops place facilities at risk for liability with the 
higher chances of players falling and getting hurt from dunking.  

Preliminary estimates of two additional adjustable basketball hoops are estimated between $8,000-
$10,000 per hoop. This is a base price for the materials and does not include engineering, 

7-B3



Page 2 of 5 

installation, labor, travel, or concrete. Vendors stated that installing two hoops on an existing court 
is a smaller project than they currently contract, so finding a vendor may be difficult. 

On this item, staff is seeking direction from the Board on whether to budget for additional 
basketball hoops at a height for youth players at Pollard Park for fiscal year 24/25, and if so, for 
the Board to make a recommendation to Town Council. 

March 22, 2024 
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager    Date

Exhibits: 
1. Current basketball court at Pollard Park facing S. Peninsula Drive 
2. Current basketball court at Pollard Park facing the pickleball courts 
3. Stock photo of an adjustable basketball hoop 

Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager



Page 3 of 5 

 
 

Exhibit 1 
Current basketball court at Pollard Park facing S. Peninsula Drive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 4 of 5 

 
Exhibit 2 

Current basketball court at Pollard Park facing the pickleball courts 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 5 of 5 

Exhibit 3 
Stock photo of an adjustable basketball hoop 

 



Page 1 of 10 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: March 25, 2024 
Subject: Potential improvements for FY 24/25 consideration: Item 4: Kayak launch at the 

Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp  

MEETING DATE:  April 1, 2024 

The Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp is a highly utilized amenity in Town to launch a variety of vessels, 
such as boats, kayaks, and paddleboards. A resident brought to staff’s attention that many visitors 
that launch kayaks and paddleboards at the boat ramp do not observe proper boat ramp etiquette 
such as sharing the space and not blocking the boardwalk/loading areas. Additionally, the resident 
stated that kayakers are currently launching from the riprap revetment south of the boat ramp.  

For these two reasons, the resident requested the town install a kayak launch along the revetment 
along the east side of the boat ramp with a sign designating that area as an official kayak/ 
paddleboard launch site. 

Public Works, Cultural Services, and the Public Safety Director assessed the current conditions of 
the boat ramp (Exhibits 1-6). The presence of oysters, algae, and unstable ground with the riprap 
revetments at a steep slope on both sides of the boat ramp present a danger to any traversing this 
unofficial kayak launch. For now, staff will therefore be placing “no kayak launching” signs on 
both the east and west revetment sides of the boat ramp as well as placing two of the current “boat 
ramp etiquette” signs closer to the boat ramp for better visibility (Exhibit 7-8). 

Item 4- Kayak launch at the Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp 
Potential improvements to the boat ramp could include a kayak/paddleboard launch under this 
Board’s recommendation to the Town Council. However, this would potentially be a two-year 
project for fiscal year 24/25 and 25/26 as the project scope may require additional research such 
as a traffic study, public comment and survey, design plans, and permitting in year one and 
construction in year two.  

On this item, staff is seeking direction from the Board on the requested project of installing a 
kayak/ paddleboard launch at the Jesse Linzy Boat Ramp, with specific direction on if staff should 
further research this project for both fiscal year 24/25 and fiscal year 25/26.  

7-B4



Page 2 of 10 

 
 
         March 25, 2024 
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager    Date 
 
 
Exhibits:  

1. East side of boat ramp facing the Halifax River 
2. East side of boat ramp facing the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse 
3. East side of boat ramp- close up of revetment 
4. West side of boat ramp facing the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse 
5. Aerial views of the Boat Ramp 
6. Aerial view of the Boat Ramp 
7. Current Boat Ramp Etiquette sign 
8. Current Boat Ramp Etiquette sign 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

Exhibit 1 
East side of boat ramp facing the Halifax River 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 10 

Exhibit 2 
East side of boat ramp facing the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 10 

Exhibit 3 
East side of boat ramp- close-up of revetment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 10 

Exhibit 4 
West side of boat ramp facing the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 10 

Exhibit 5 
Aerial view of the Boat Ramp 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 10 

Exhibit 6 
Aerial view of the Boat Ramp 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 

Exhibit 7 
Current Boat Ramp Etiquette sign 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Page 10 of 10 

Exhibit 8 
Current Boat Ramp Etiquette sign 

 


	04-01-24 CSB agenda
	4 Cover
	4A   02-05-2024 Draft CSB minutes
	7-A  Cover
	7-A  Staff Report - Historic Tree Ponce Preserve - 2024
	7-B  Cover
	7-B1  Davies Pavilion FY 24-25 potential improvement
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

	7-B2   Native Plant ID FY 24-25 potential improvement
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

	7-B3  Basketball hoop FY 24-25 potential improvement
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

	7B-4  Kayak launch at boat ramp FY 24-25 potential improvement
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.




